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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This structure was built in 1880 for the Wartburg Teachers' Seminary, an educational
institution founded by the (German) Lutheran Synod of Iowa and Other States in 1879. It
is now "0ld Main" on the campus of Wartburg College.

The building is three stories high on a raised stone foundation, 60' (5 bays) wide

and 40' (four bays) deep. 2/2 segmentally-arched sash windows have corbelled brick
hoods, painted white, and cast-iron sills. Brick used in construction is red-orange,
manufactured locally and laid in common bond. The segmentally-arched central entrance
has double doow and a hooded transom, and is framed by sidelights. The small porch

is supported by slender, bracketted wooden posts. Steps and porch foundation

are cement block.

The metal-covered hipped roof has six small gabled dormers. Beneath the narrow eaves
is a denticular cornice and panelled frieze.

The rectangular plan has rooms arranged around a central hall and staircase. These are
for the most part offices and classrooms. The interior is scheduled for extensive

remodelling in order to bring the building up to code standards., but the exterior,
unaltered from its original state, will be left intact.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This structure is the first structure associated with German Lutheran higher
education in Iowa, beginning as a small normal school in 1878 and developing over
the years into a fully-accredited four-year collegiate institution. Its archi-
tecture is typical of the period in which it was constructed, a simple vernacular
adaptation of the Italianate with a restrained use of decorative features.

The building was constructed in 1880 for the Wartburg Teachers' Seminary, an
educational institution founded by the Lutheran Synod of Iowa and Other States

in 1879. TFollowing the earliest tradition of Wartburg (the first Wartburg institution
was a normal school established at Saginaw, Michigan in 1852), this school at

Waverly was founded to train young men to teach in Lutheran parish schools.

Although a need for such an institution had been recognized py the Synod as early
as 1864, action was delayed until the various congregations became too large for
their pastors to teach in the church schools and minister to the parishes at the
same time. In the late 1870's, G. Grossman (then president of the Synod and later
Wartburg's first director) proposed a small normal school, to be held in buildings
at the state orphanage at Andrew. The first class opened there in 1878, with six

students.

In 1879, the Synod chose Waverly for the permanent home of the Wartburg Teachers'
Seminary, and erected the three-story school building the following year. Almost
immediately, a program of general studies was added to the normal course, to accommodate
areastudents in addition to the future parish school geachers. The building at first
housed all functions: a dormitory in the attic, living area in the classrooms when
they were not in educational use, housing for the teachers (originally two) on the

first floor, and dining/kitchen facilities in the basement.

Beginning in 1885, the curriculum at Wartburg fluctuated accoring to the various
purposes assigned to the school by the Synod. In that year, the Wartburg college at
Mendota, Ill. 'was tra&sferred here, to meet "all the needs of the 1aity of the Synod
for higher education"'. In 1893, the college was removed to Clinton (Ia.) and the
Waverly school ireverted to its original status as a strictly normal institutign.
years later, a ¥preparatory department " (corresponding to 7th and 8th grades) and
a "proseminary": (originally at Dubuque) were housed here. By 1913, women were admitted

to the institution.
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After the organization of the American Lutheran Synod (which incorporated the
Synod of Iowa) in 1930, Wartburg at Waverly was confirmed as the permanent home
of the college. Physical expansion (begun in 1888) of the campus has coincided
with increased curriculum offerings, particularly in the social sciences. "01d
‘Main" is still the kCEnterplec@ of this act1ve institution, and houses the
Rellglon Department,. -~ -~ [ ..~ -

1 Ottersberg, p. 46.



